
Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 1 of 4  
November 8, 2023 
 
 

Agenda 
SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Wednesday, November 8, 2023 
Regular Meeting – 5:30 p.m. 

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 
970 Klamath Lane – Board Room 

Yuba City, CA  95993 
 

 
A full Board packet is available for review at the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 
Reception Desk, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA (8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday – 
excluding legal holidays) and the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ website at 
www.sutter.k12.ca.us. 
 
Members of the public wishing to address the Board on specific agenda items, or any item of interest 
that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, will be given an opportunity to do so.  At the 
discretion of the Board president, time limits may be imposed upon such presentations.  No action 
may be taken on items not appearing on the posted agenda. 
 
5:30 p.m. 1.0 Call to Order 
 
  2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
 
  3.0 Roll Call of Members: 
 
   June McJunkin, President 
   Victoria Lachance, Vice President 
   Kash Gill, Member 
   Harjit Singh, Member 
   Gurv Pamma, Member 
 
  4.0 Items of Public Interest to Come to the Attention of the Board 
 

Members of the public are given an opportunity to address the Board 
regarding items not listed on the agenda.  The California Government Code, 
Section 54954.2 (a)(2) states, “No action or discussion shall be undertaken on 
any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that members of a 
legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under Section 
54954.3.” 

http://www.sutter.k12.ca.us/


 
          5.0 Approve Minutes of the October 11, 2023, Regular Meeting    
   [Action Item] 
       
   The minutes of the October 11, 2023, Regular Meeting of the    
   Sutter County Board of Education are presented for approval. 
      
                     6.0 Set Date, Time and Place for Annual Organizational Meeting  

 Tom Reusser [Action Item] 
 
 It is required the Board establish a date for their Annual Organizational 

Meeting at the November Board Meeting.  Per Ed Code §1009, the date this 
meeting must take place shall be on or after the second Friday in December.  
The date of the regular December meeting is scheduled for December 13, 
which falls within this time period.   

    
  7.0 Student Support and Outreach Department Presentation 
   Virginia Burns- Director 
      
   8.0     Quarterly Report on Williams/ Uniform Complaints 
   (July 1, 2022 – September 30, 2022) – Brian Gault 
 
   Education Code 35186 requires the county superintendent to report on the    

 number and nature of complaints filed for: 
 

1) Textbooks and instructional materials 
2) Teacher vacancies or mid-assignments 
3) Facilities and conditions 

 
    9.0  Annual Report on Williams Compliance Visitations  
    Brian Gault 
 

   California Education Code Section 1240 requires the county superintendent visit  
   schools identified in our county and report to you the results of the visit.  This   
   report primarily concerns the visit to Gray Avenue, Park Avenue, Yuba City   
   High School, East Nicolaus High School and CAVA at Sutter.     
   
  10.0  Business Services Report 

 Nic Hoogeveen, Director Business Services 
 
 10.1      October Summary Report 
 10.2 Quarterly Facilities Update – James Peters Facilities Director 
 10.3  Site Profile Work Sheet 

           



             11.0 Revisions to Board Policies – Second Reading 
   Ron Sherrod, Assistant Superintendent [Action Item] 
 
   The following Board Policies and Administrative Regulations are   
   presented to the Board for a second reading and Board approval. 
 
   11.1  3400 AR Management of County office Assets/Accounts 
   11.2  3400 BP Management of County Office Assets/Accounts 
   11.3  3400 AR Inventories 
   11.4  3451 AR Petty Cash Funds 
   11.5  34512 AR Student Activity Funds 
       
 
  12.0      COP Financing Results Presentation 
   Ron Sherrod-Assistant Superintendent of Business 
   Lori Raineri and Keith Weaver Government Financial Services JPA 
 
          To provide a presentation summarizing the results of the COP financing. 
    
    12.1 Board Presentation Financing Results for New Career Training and  
           Conference Center  
 
 
  13.0      Investment Report 
                     Ron Sherrod- Assistant Superintendent 

         The Investment Statement as of August 31, 2023 from the County Treasurer will be  
   presented. 

 

  14.0     Donation to Shady Creek 

   14.1 Mari Reeves Donated 40.00  

                      

                         15.0     Approval of Lease for Storage Space with Arch Investments, LLC  

                                    Ron Sherrod, Assistant Superintendent of Business [Action Item] 

                                    15.1 Commercial Lease Agreement 

                                    15.2 Addendum 



           16.00      Approval of Lease Extension with Cascarat Living Trust 
    Ron Sherrod, Assistant Superintendent of Business [Action Item] 
   
   Approval of Lease Extension with Coscarat Living Trust 
   950 Tharp Road, #1100 Yuba City, Ca. 95993 
   The extension increases the duration through December 31, 2025, which  
   Converts to a month-to-month lease thereafter. 
  
   16.1 Lease Extension 
 
 
    
  17.0       Approval of Lease Extension with Myriad Capital LLC 
                     Ron Sherrod, Assistant Superintendent of Business [Action Item] 
 
                  Approval of Lease Extension with Myriad Capital LLC that currently accommodates       
            training and office space for Sutter County One Stop located at: 

                         950 Tharp Road, #1000 Yuba City, CA 95993 
                The extension increases the duration through December 31, 2025, which converts to     
              a month-to-month lease thereafter. 

      
               17.1 Lease Extension 
 
                           18.0     Items from the Superintendent/Board 
 
     19.0     Adjournment  
 
  
    
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to access the Board 
Meeting room, to access written documents being discussed at the Board Meeting, or to otherwise participate at 
Board Meetings, please contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530-822-2900 for assistance.  Notification at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting will enable the Superintendent’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to the Board Meeting and to provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids or services. 
 
All Open Session Agenda related documents, including materials distributed less than 72 hours prior to the 
scheduled meeting, are available to the public for viewing at the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 
located at 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  95993. 



Unapproved  
SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION MINUTES 

Wednesday, October 11, 2023 
Regular Meeting – 5:30 p.m. 

 
  1.0 Call to Order 

  President McJunkin, 5:30 p.m., October 11, 2023, at the Sutter     
  County Superintendent of Schools Office, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City,  
             California, called a regular meeting of the Sutter County                   
             Board of Education to order. 

  
 
  2.0 Pledge of Allegiance  
   Superintendent Tom Reusser led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
  3.0 Roll Call of Members: 
   June McJunkin, President- Present 
   Victoria Lachance, Vice President- Present 
   Gurv Pamma, Member- Present  
   Harjit Singh, Member- Present 
        Kash Gill, Member-Present 
 
    Tom Reusser, Ex-officio Secretary – Present 
 

   Staff Members Present: Ron Sherrod, Nic Hoogeveen, Joe                        
                        Hendrix, Brian Gault Karisa Williams, Kathy Mercier, Lorilee                             
   Niesen and Virginia Burns 

 
 
  4.0 Items of Public Interest to Come to the Attention of the Board 
   None 
    
  5.0 Approve Minutes of the September 13, 2023, Regular Meeting      
   A motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda 

 
                Motion: Gill           Seconded: Lachance 

                         Action: Motion Carried 
                         Ayes: 5   
                         Noes: 0    
                         Absent:  0   Abstain: 0 

 
         



Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 2 of 4  
October 12, 2022 
 
  6.0 Human Resources Department Presentation 
   Kathy Mercier, Director of Human Resources 
   Updated the Board and gave an overview of the responsibilities and functions  
   of the Human Resources Department. 
      
            
  7.0 SP/BP and AR 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional        
   Materials- Second Reading 
   Brian Gault, Assistant Superintendent /Elizabeth Bhatti, Compliance Manager 

 A motion was made to approve SP/BP and AR 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation  of 
Instructional Materials and 7.2 AR 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional 
Materials. 

 
                Motion:  Harjit Singh         Seconded:  Pamma 

            Action: Motion Carried 
                 Ayes: 5    
                 Noes: 0     
                 Absent:  0   Abstain: 0 

  
8.0 Supervisor of Attendance Approval 
.   Virginia Burns, Director SSO 

  
   Recommend that Virginia Burns be appointed Supervisor of Attendance for Sutter  
   County Superintendent of Schools pending successful completion of Supervisor of  
   Attendance Training on September 28, 2023.   
   Recommend that Jennifer Cates be certified as District Supervisors of Attendance for  
   Yuba City Unified School District pending successful completion of Supervisor of  
   Attendance Training on October 4, 2023. 
   Recommend that Glenn Houston be certified as District Supervisors of Attendance for  
   Live Oak Unified School District pending successful completion of Supervisor of  
   Attendance Training on October 4, 2023.   

 
 A motion was made to approve Supervisor of Attendance Approval  

                Motion:  Gill          Seconded:  Pamma 
                         Action: Motion Carried 
                         Ayes: 5   
                         Noes: 0     
                         Absent:0   Abstain: 0 

 
 
9.0 COP Financing Update- Update on the COP financing and expected next steps 
 Ron Sherrod, Assistant Superintendent updated the Board on COP financing. 
  



Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 3 of 4  
October 12, 2022 
 

 
 SCSOS went through competitive bid process, 4 bids came through for COP. Winning 

bid was 4.975 interest rate. Roughly annual payment one million twenty thousand 
dollars. We expect final closing next week on October 19, 2023.   We are not buying 
down the rate; we will start payments before the building is complete to get a head 
start. 

 
 Facility update: Ron Sherrod updated the Board on the lease extension coming up for 

the 1100 building; renewals will take place until we move in to new building. We will 
continue to rent warehouse storage as we move things around, Ron will have the 
rental agreements next month for approval. We are consolidating our cosmetology 
program over to 1100 building in December 2023. 

 
 
10.0 Business Services Report- September financial report will be reviewed. 
 Nicolass Hoogeveen, Director Business Services updated the board on 
 the 22-23 budget changes occurring from 8/16-9/15. Federal revenue increased by 

$139 k, largely in part to establishing a budget for WIPA Prison to Employment Award 
and Regional Equity and recovery grant at One Stop. Classified salaries decreased. 
Books and supplies increased by $265k, Services increased in SPED due to contractor 
filling positions. Overall, a net decrease in fund balance or roughly $230k this is largely 
in part to budgeting restricted fund balance. 

  
11.0 Internal Business Department Presentation 
 Nicolass Hoogeveen, Director Business Services updated the Board on the  
 Unaudited Actuals Report 2022/2023. 
  
  

  12.0 GANN Limit Resolution No 23-24-IV is presented for Board approval to certify 
   that the appropriations in the adopted budget do not exceed the  
   limitations imposed by Article XIIIB of the California Constitution  
     Nic Hoogeveen presented Resolution No. 23-24 IV to the Board for 
     approval to certify the appropriations in the adopted budget do  
         not exceed the limitations imposed by Article XIIIB of the   
        California Constitution commonly known as the GANN   
        Amendment.         
 
          A motion was made to adopt Resolution Number 23-24 IV GANN                    

         Limit.  
 
          Roll call vote: Singh, aye; Lachance, aye; Pamma, aye; Gill, aye;   

                 McJunkin, aye.  



Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 4 of 4  
October 12, 2022 
 
  
    Motion: Gill   Seconded:  LaChance 
   Action: Motion Carried 
    Ayes: 5  
   Noes: 0  
     Absent: 0   Abstain:  0 
   
 
   
     13.0 AeroSTEM Initial Annual Report SCSOS staff conducted a review of AeroSTEM    
  Academy for the 2022-2023 school year. Joe Hendrix, Deputy Superintendent of SCSOS     
  and Joseph Clark, Director of AeroSTEM, updated the Board on the Annual Review results.    
    There was improvement that needed to happen and it is taking place. There was 56 pts that  
  needed to be addressed and all but two have been completed and /or are ongoing.   
  Credentialed teachers  now teach classes. AeroSTEM wants progress not progression and  
  that is now happening. AeroSTEM has five new Administrators and or Teachers.   
  June states the board has grown since SCSOS stepped in and assisted. Board member  
  June McJunkin praised Debbie Obrien School Clerical Support. 
 
                14.0 Superintendent Update 

• County of Sutter Proclamation Anti Bullying 
• Golden Bell Award- Daniella Pomeroy Dental Program- Tri County ROP 

 
                15.0 Adjournment  
  A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 6:35pm 

 
   Motion: Gill    Seconded: Singh 
             Action: Motion Carried  
  Ayes: 5   
             Noes: 0   
  Absent: 0    Abstain: 0 
 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to access the Board Meeting 
room, to access written documents being discussed at the Board Meeting, or to otherwise participate at Board Meetings, 
please contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530-822-2900 for assistance.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting 
will enable the Superintendent’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board Meeting and 
to provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids or services. 
 
All Open Session Agenda related documents, including materials distributed less than 72 hours prior to the scheduled 
meeting, are available to the public for viewing at the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office located at 970 Klamath 
Lane, Yuba City, CA  95993. 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  ___7  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:      Student Support and Outreach                                  
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   November 2023         
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
  Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
x  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
Virginia Burns 
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Virginia Burns 
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
Virginia Burns 
 
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 



Agenda Item No. 8.0

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Quarterly Report on Williams/ Uniform Complaints

BOARD MEETING DATE: November 8, 2023

AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR:

Action

X Reports/Presentation

Information

Public Hearing

Other (specify)

PREPARED BY:

Tania Martinez

SUBMITTED BY:

Tania Martinez

PRESENTING TO BOARD:

Brian Gault

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:

As per California Education Code Section 35186 the county superintendent reports on the
number and nature of complaints filed for:

1) Textbooks and instructional materials
2) Teacher vacancies or mis-assignments
3) Facilities and conditions

None of the districts had any complaints filed during the period of July 2023 to September
2023.





    Agenda Item No.  ___9.0____ 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Williams Compliance Visitations 

BOARD MEETING DATE: November 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 

 Action 

  X    Reports/Presentation 

Information 

Public Hearing 

Other (specify) 

PREPARED BY: 

Kristi Johnson 

SUBMITTED BY: 

Kristi Johnson 

PRESENTING TO BOARD: 

 Brian Gault 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 

California Education Code Section 1240 Williams Legislation requires the county superintendent visit 
schools identified in our county and report to you the results of the visit.  This report primarily 
concerns the visit to Gray Avenue, Park Avenue, Yuba City High School (YCUSD) and East Nicolaus High 
School (ENJUHSD). 
Assembly Bill (AB) 599 (Chapter 668, Statutes of 2021) revised Section 1240 and requires the State 
Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) to identify the list of Williams-monitored schools (including 
charter schools) beginning with the 2021-22 fiscal year, again in 2022-23 fiscal year, and then every 
three fiscal years thereafter, during the same fiscal year that schools are identified for comprehensive 
support and improvement or additional targeted support and improvement pursuant to Every Student 
Succeeds Act (Public Law 114-95) or identified as low performing under the federal Elementary and 
Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Public Law 89-10). The list of schools will be compiled as follows: 

 All schools (excluding Dashboard Alternative School Status (DASS) schools) identified for
comprehensive support and improvement and additional targeted support and improvement
pursuant to the federal Every Student Succeeds Act (Public Law 114-95).

 All schools where 15 percent or more of the teachers are holders of any authorization that is a
lesser certification than a preliminary or clear California teacher credential.

 The list of schools excludes alternative schools defined in Section 52052(d) and other schools
accepted for participation in the DASS program.



Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
WILLIAMS SETTLEMENT LEGISLATION

ANNUAL REPORT FOR EAST NICOLAUS JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR

This report summarizes the results of the Williams Site Visits and documentation for the 2023-24 school year.

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS:

Schools were reviewed for sufficient textbooks and instructional materials** as noted below:

School Review
Date

# of
Classrooms
Visited

Subject/ Course Textbook/Instructional Materials
Needed

G
r
a
d
e

P
e
r
i
o
d

R
o
o
m
#

# of Material
Missing

Corrected
on

East Nicolaus High School 8/28/2023 8 ELA/ELD/Math/HSS/
Science NONE NONE N/A

* Unannounced school(s)
**“Sufficient textbooks and instructional materials” means each pupil, including English learners, has a standards-aligned textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home in the four
core areas (including science laboratory equipment in grades 9-12) as well as, for middle and high school, in world language and health.

SCHOOL FACILITIES:

Schools were reviewed for condition of facilities, whether they were in “good repair”* or pose an “emergency”** as noted below:

School Review
Date

Room/ Area Facility Deficiencies Identified Emergency Correction/
Action Taken

Corrected
On

East Nicolaus High School 9/1/2023 N/A NONE N/A
*“Good repair” means the facilities are clean, safe and functional as determined pursuant to the school facility inspection and evaluation instrument developed by the Office of Public School Construction or a
local evaluation instrument that meets the same criteria.
** “Emergency condition” means a facility condition that poses a threat to the health or safety of pupils or staff while at school.

June 2022



Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
WILLIAMS SETTLEMENT LEGISLATION

ANNUAL REPORT FOR EAST NICOLAUS JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR

SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT CARD (SARC):

The 2022-23 School Accountability Report Cards (SARC) for the following schools were reviewed to determine the accuracy of the information reported for
sufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials and safety, cleanliness, and adequacy of school facilities, including “good repair”:

School
SARC
Review
Date

Instructional Materials Discrepancies Facility Conditions Discrepancies

East Nicolaus High School 9/8/2023 NONE NONE

TEACHER MISASSIGNMENTS AND TEACHER VACANCIES:

The results of teacher misassignments* and teacher vacancy** reviews for the following schools were:

(Note: The annual report will include the teacher misassignments and vacancies reported through CalSAAS annually. The quarterly reports will include the
misassignments and vacancies identified upon completion of an annual review.

Schools East Nicolaus High School

Number of overall misassignments for the 2022-23 (Based on Census Date)1 10

Number of misassignments that were corrected within 30 calendar days (Based on Census
Date) 0

1 Overall misassignments includes both corrected and uncorrected misassignments (including vacancies) determined during the CalSAAS review based on Census date.
June 2022



Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
WILLIAMS SETTLEMENT LEGISLATION

ANNUAL REPORT FOR EAST NICOLAUS JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR

Number of classes in which the teacher was lacking the appropriate authorization and training
to teach English Learners and 20% or more of students were English learners (Based on
Census Date)2

2

Number of Teacher Vacancies for the 2022-23 (Based on SARC Data)3 0

Number of Teacher Vacancies Filled in the 2022-23 (Based on SARC Data) 0

*“Misassignment” means the placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position for which the employee does not hold a legally recognized certificate or credential or the placement of a
certificated employee in a teaching or services position that the employee is not otherwise authorized by statute to hold. [E.C. 35186(h)(2)]. More than one
misassignment may be identified within a certificated assignment (e.g., a special education teacher lacking authorization for potentially more than one disability). English learners (EL) misassignments are one
per teacher of record and included in the total of misassignments.

**“Teacher vacancy” means a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a one-semester course, a
position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of a semester for an entire semester. [E.C. Section 35186(h)(3) and C.C.R. Title 5 Section 4600(b)]

3 Due to revisions within E.C. 44258.9 and the implementation of the CalSAAS program in 2019/20, assignment monitoring exceptions are reviewed within the CalSAAS program based on certificated
assignments as of Census Date (first Wednesday in October). This data is reported by LEAs to CDE through CALPADS. Vacancies reported on the SARC follow C.C. R. Title 5 section 4600(b) and are based
on vacancies that are not filled within the first 20 business days of the semester-long course. Assignments determined as vacancies during the annual assignment monitoring process utilizing the CalSAAS
program are based on vacant positions on Census Date. Clarification is needed from CDE regarding which vacancy data (Census or SARC data) should be used for Williams reporting purposes. Pending
clarification, there has been continued use of the SARC vacancy data.

2 Due to the revised monitoring process through CalSAAS, clarification is needed from CDE regarding whether the manual data collection of the number of English learner related misassignments involving
classes in which 20% or more of the students are English learners is still required for the purposes of Williams reporting to CTC. The CalSAAS program does not currently collect or report this data. (Former
CCSESA Guidance: Outline of Process for Teacher Assignment Monitoring and Teacher Assignment Monitoring and Review Sample Templates)

June 2022

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/ccsesa.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/01/8.0-Outline_of_Process_for_Teacher_Assignment_Monitoring.pdf__;!!KlnUNGHvdQ!8xnSRrDgt2WeqDX4Idiw6P-Ki0wRzH7g94qekcbpDd4VIeqcjzM0QSaXVgR5Z0KikoxlpK-QYA3GC2iFhhi1ZcYIogtw2vXC$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/ccsesa.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/01/8.1-Teacher_Assignment_Monitoring_and_Review_Sample_Templates.pdf__;!!KlnUNGHvdQ!8xnSRrDgt2WeqDX4Idiw6P-Ki0wRzH7g94qekcbpDd4VIeqcjzM0QSaXVgR5Z0KikoxlpK-QYA3GC2iFhhi1ZcYIopmo4KaT$


Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
WILLIAMS SETTLEMENT LEGISLATION

ANNUAL REPORT FOR EAST NICOLAUS JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR

UNIFORM COMPLAINTS (OPTIONAL)4:

The number of complaints filed within the district during the <quarter> <year>, their nature, and resolution are noted below:

General Subject Area Total # of
Complaints # Resolved # Unresolved

Textbooks and Instructional Materials
0 N/A N/A

Teacher Misassignments or Vacancies
0 N/A N/A

Facilities Conditions
0 N/A N/A

TOTALS
0 N/A N/A

4 Not applicable for charter schools
June 2022



Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
WILLIAMS SETTLEMENT LEGISLATION

ANNUAL REPORT FOR YUBA CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR

This report summarizes the results of the Williams Site Visits and documentation for the 2023-24 school year.

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS:

Schools were reviewed for sufficient textbooks and instructional materials** as noted below:

School Review
Date

# of
Classrooms
Visited

Subject/ Course Textbook/Instructional Materials
Needed

G
r
a
d
e

P
e
r
i
o
d

R
o
o
m
#

# of Material
Missing

Corrected
on

Gray Avenue 9/1/2023 7 ELA/ELD/Math/HSS/
Science NONE NONE N/A

Park Avenue 8/31/2023 6 ELA/ELD/Math/HSS/
Science NONE NONE N/A

Yuba City High School 9/6/2023 15 ELA/ELD/Math/HSS/
Science NONE NONE N/A

* Unannounced school(s)
**“Sufficient textbooks and instructional materials” means each pupil, including English learners, has a standards-aligned textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home in the four
core areas (including science laboratory equipment in grades 9-12) as well as, for middle and high school, in world language and health.

SCHOOL FACILITIES:

Schools were reviewed for condition of facilities, whether they were in “good repair”* or pose an “emergency”** as noted below:

School Review
Date

Room/ Area Facility Deficiencies Identified Emergency Correction/
Action Taken

Corrected
On

Gray Avenue 8/31/2023 N/A NONE N/A

Park Avenue 9/8/2023 N/A NONE N/A

Yuba City High School 9/6/2023 N/A NONE N/A
*“Good repair” means the facilities are clean, safe and functional as determined pursuant to the school facility inspection and evaluation instrument developed by the Office of Public School Construction or a
local evaluation instrument that meets the same criteria.
** “Emergency condition” means a facility condition that poses a threat to the health or safety of pupils or staff while at school.

June 2022



Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
WILLIAMS SETTLEMENT LEGISLATION

ANNUAL REPORT FOR YUBA CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR

SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT CARD (SARC):

The 2022-23 School Accountability Report Cards (SARC) for the following schools were reviewed to determine the accuracy of the information reported for
sufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials and safety, cleanliness, and adequacy of school facilities, including “good repair”:

School
SARC
Review
Date

Instructional Materials Discrepancies Facility Conditions Discrepancies

Gray Avenue 9/8/2023 NONE NONE

Park Avenue 9/8/2023 NONE NONE

Yuba City High School 9/8/2023 NONE NONE

TEACHER MISASSIGNMENTS AND TEACHER VACANCIES:

The results of teacher misassignments* and teacher vacancy** reviews for the following schools were:

(Note: The annual report will include the teacher misassignments and vacancies reported through CalSAAS annually. The quarterly reports will include the
misassignments and vacancies identified upon completion of an annual review.

Schools Gray Avenue Park Avenue Yuba City High
School

Number of overall misassignments for the 2022-23 (Based on Census Date)1 2 0 13

Number of misassignments that were corrected within 30 calendar days (Based on Census
Date) 0 0 0

1 Overall misassignments includes both corrected and uncorrected misassignments (including vacancies) determined during the CalSAAS review based on Census date.
June 2022



Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
WILLIAMS SETTLEMENT LEGISLATION

ANNUAL REPORT FOR YUBA CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR

Number of classes in which the teacher was lacking the appropriate authorization and training
to teach English Learners and 20% or more of students were English learners (Based on
Census Date)2

0 0 1

Number of Teacher Vacancies for the 2022-23 (Based on SARC Data)3 0 0 0

Number of Teacher Vacancies Filled in the 2022-23 (Based on SARC Data) 0 0 0

*“Misassignment” means the placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position for which the employee does not hold a legally recognized certificate or credential or the placement of a
certificated employee in a teaching or services position that the employee is not otherwise authorized by statute to hold. [E.C. 35186(h)(2)]. More than one
misassignment may be identified within a certificated assignment (e.g., a special education teacher lacking authorization for potentially more than one disability). English learners (EL) misassignments are one
per teacher of record and included in the total of misassignments.

**“Teacher vacancy” means a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a one-semester course, a
position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of a semester for an entire semester. [E.C. Section 35186(h)(3) and C.C.R. Title 5 Section 4600(b)]

3 Due to revisions within E.C. 44258.9 and the implementation of the CalSAAS program in 2019/20, assignment monitoring exceptions are reviewed within the CalSAAS program based on certificated
assignments as of Census Date (first Wednesday in October). This data is reported by LEAs to CDE through CALPADS. Vacancies reported on the SARC follow C.C. R. Title 5 section 4600(b) and are based
on vacancies that are not filled within the first 20 business days of the semester-long course. Assignments determined as vacancies during the annual assignment monitoring process utilizing the CalSAAS
program are based on vacant positions on Census Date. Clarification is needed from CDE regarding which vacancy data (Census or SARC data) should be used for Williams reporting purposes. Pending
clarification, there has been continued use of the SARC vacancy data.

2 Due to the revised monitoring process through CalSAAS, clarification is needed from CDE regarding whether the manual data collection of the number of English learner related misassignments involving
classes in which 20% or more of the students are English learners is still required for the purposes of Williams reporting to CTC. The CalSAAS program does not currently collect or report this data. (Former
CCSESA Guidance: Outline of Process for Teacher Assignment Monitoring and Teacher Assignment Monitoring and Review Sample Templates)

June 2022

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/ccsesa.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/01/8.0-Outline_of_Process_for_Teacher_Assignment_Monitoring.pdf__;!!KlnUNGHvdQ!8xnSRrDgt2WeqDX4Idiw6P-Ki0wRzH7g94qekcbpDd4VIeqcjzM0QSaXVgR5Z0KikoxlpK-QYA3GC2iFhhi1ZcYIogtw2vXC$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/ccsesa.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/01/8.1-Teacher_Assignment_Monitoring_and_Review_Sample_Templates.pdf__;!!KlnUNGHvdQ!8xnSRrDgt2WeqDX4Idiw6P-Ki0wRzH7g94qekcbpDd4VIeqcjzM0QSaXVgR5Z0KikoxlpK-QYA3GC2iFhhi1ZcYIopmo4KaT$


Sutter County Superintendent of Schools
WILLIAMS SETTLEMENT LEGISLATION

ANNUAL REPORT FOR YUBA CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR

UNIFORM COMPLAINTS (OPTIONAL)4:

The number of complaints filed within the district during the <quarter> <year>, their nature, and resolution are noted below:

General Subject Area Total # of
Complaints # Resolved # Unresolved

Textbooks and Instructional Materials
0 N/A N/A

Teacher Misassignments or Vacancies
0 N/A N/A

Facilities Conditions
0 N/A N/A

TOTALS
0 N/A N/A

4 Not applicable for charter schools
June 2022



  Agenda Item No.  ___ 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM:   

BOARD MEETING DATE:  

AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 

Action 

Reports/Presentation 

Information 

Public Hearing 

Other (specify) 

PREPARED BY: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

PRESENTING TO BOARD: 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 



Description Account Original Operating Actuals to Projected Difference 2023-24 %

Codes Budget Budget Date Yr Totals (Col D - B) Actuals

as a %

7/1/23 9/15/23 10/15/23 10/15/23 of Budget
(A) (B) (C) (D)  (E)

A.  Revenues

    1. Local Control Funding Formula 8010-8099 11,306,536$     11,306,536$    1,923,718$    11,306,536$  -                   A 17.0%
    2. Federal Revenues 8100-8299 5,036,967$       5,253,594$      555,226$       5,249,204$    (4,390)              B 10.6%

    3. Other State Revenues 8300-8599 14,144,633$     14,436,585$    3,066,359$    14,780,316$  343,731            C 21.2%

    4. Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 16,070,941$     15,805,994$    732,546$       17,675,620$  1,869,626         D 4.6%

.

      5. TOTAL REVENUES 46,559,077$     46,802,709$    6,277,849$    49,011,676$  2,208,967$       12.8%

B.  Expenditures

    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 10,147,561$     10,169,191$    2,147,612$    10,695,129$  525,938            E 21.1%

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 12,983,439$     12,947,773$    2,606,776$    12,982,510$  34,737              F 20.1%

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 10,672,644$     10,681,989$    1,948,866$    10,777,330$  95,341              G 18.2%

    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,191,623$       1,662,681$      214,172$       1,670,979$    8,298                H 12.9%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 8,050,467$       8,313,912$      1,947,055$    8,892,611$    578,699            I 23.4%

    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 648,184$          1,100,305$      87,532$         1,100,305$    -                   J 8.0%

    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 509,024$          560,007$         192,862$       1,705,421$    1,145,414         K 34.4%

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (117,633)$        (106,754)$        (17,062)$        (106,754)$      -                   L 16.0%

    9. Debt Service 7400-7499 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -                   M 0.0%

 

       10. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 44,085,309$     45,329,104$    9,127,813$    47,717,531$  2,388,427         20.1%

C. Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures Before Other

Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B10)

D. Other Financing Sources/Uses

    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 35,000$           35,050$           -$               35,050$         -                   0.0%

    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 2,716,977$       2,716,977$      -$               2,716,977$    -                   0.0%

    3. Contributions 8980-8999 -$                 -$                 -                   0.0%

       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses (2,681,977)$     (2,681,927)$     -$               (2,681,927)$   -$                 0.0%

E. Net Change to Fund Balance (208,209)$         (1,208,322)$      (2,849,964)$    (1,387,782)$    (179,460)$         H

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)

    1. Beginning Balance 16,095,590$     16,095,590$    16,095,590$  16,095,590$  -                   

    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                 -$                 -$               -$               

       Ending Balance 15,887,381$      14,887,268$     13,245,626$   14,707,808$   (179,460)$         

G. Components of Ending Fund Balance
    Designated Amounts 9711-9730 10,500$           10,500$           10,500$         -$                 

    Legally Restricted 9740-9760 4,911,518$       3,453,379$      3,135,927$    -$                 

    Assigned 9780 8,625,249$       9,021,085$      9,039,656$    -$                 

    Restricted Economic Uncertainty 9789 2,340,114$       2,402,304$      2,521,725$    -$                 

    Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 -$                 -$                 -$               -$                 

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
(Unrestricted and Restricted Combined)

October 2023

-220.2%(179,460)$         1,294,145$    (2,849,964)$   1,473,605$      2,473,768$       

09/16/23-10/15/23



Explanation of Differences 
Net Change in Current Year Budget October Board Report

09/16/23-10/15/23

Amount Explanation of Differences

A Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)

  -$                      

B Federal Revenues (8100-8299)
One Stop 6,634$               Establishing budget for High Road Construction Careers

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) 1,403$               Adjust budget to match award amount

Infant Program (12,312)$           Adjust ARP IDEA Part C to actuals

Various departments (115)$                Miscellaneous Adjustments

(4,390)$             

C Other State Revenues (8300-8599)

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) 694,105$           
Adjust budget for Learning Communities For School Success 

Program Grant

Pathways Charter Academy 1,818$               Adjust budget for Mental Health Funds

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) (370,492)$         Adjust budget for Mental Health Funds

Infant Program 18,300$             Adjust budget based on prior year P‐2 and revised factor

343,731$           

D Other Local Revenues (8600-8799)
Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 14,000$             Establish budget for ELOP Technical Assistance

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) 362,291$           
Establish budget for Social and Emotional Learning Communities 

of Practice

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 1,492,934$        IDEA Mental Health monies from LEA's

Various departments 401$                  Miscellaneous Adjustments

1,869,626$        

E Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)

Special Education 523,881$           Adjust budget for caseload stipends and long term substitutes

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) 4,156$               Updating budget to match award and grant amounts

Infant Program (2,099)$             Adjust budget to actuals spent

525,938$           

F Classified Salaries (2000-2999)

Special Education 33,210$             Adjust budget for billbacks, Secretaries, Classifieds and Substitutes

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) (2,913)$             Update budget to match Award and Grant amounts

Feather River Academy (FRA) (1,026)$             Adjust budget for PCA transportation

Pathways Charter Academy 5,526$               Adjust budget for PCA transportation

Various departments (60)$                  Miscellaneous Adjustments

34,737$             



Explanation of Differences 
Net Change in Current Year Budget October Board Report

09/16/23-10/15/23

Amount Explanation of Differences
G Employee Benefits  (3000-3999)

County Office

Special Education 125,670$           Adjust budget for billbacks, Secretaries, Classifieds and Substitutes

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) (28,200)$           Update budget to remove health benefits

Infant Program (2,603)$             
Adjust budget for first interim percentage change between 

resources

Various departments 474$                  Miscellaneous Adjustments

95,341$             

H Books and Supplies  (4000-4999)
County Office 2,400$               Establish Culture and Climate Committee Budget

Special Education 10,262$             Adjust budget to move supplies under sites

One Stop 3,553$               Adjust budget for WIOA Adult and QUEST Participants

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) (4,900)$             Adjust budget for conference

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) 1,710$               Adjust budget to purchase non capital equipment

Feather River Academy (FRA) 1,591$               Adjust to balance Feather River Academy General Fund

Pathways Charter Academy (6,547)$             Adjust budget for transporting students

Various departments 229$                  Miscellaneous Adjustments

8,298$               

I Services, Other Operations (5000-5999)
County Office (15,772)$           Adjust budget for 22/23 M&O True Up

Special Education (389,815)$         Reduce subcontractors budgets

One Stop 11,849$             Adjust budget for WIOA Adult and QUEST Participants

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 10,791$             Adjust budget for conference and ELOP Tech Assist 

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) 963,869$           Adjust budget for LCSSP and SELCOP 3.0 Grants

Feather River Academy (FRA) 3,658$               Adjust budget 22/23 M&O True Up

Infant Program (6,309)$             Adjust budget to actuals spent

Various departments 428$                  Miscellaneous Adjustments

578,699$           

J Capital Outlay (6000-6999)

-$                      

K Other Outgo (7100 - 7299)
Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 4,000$               Adjust budget to match revised MOU

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 1,141,414$        
Adjust budget for IDEA, Mental Health and estimated Medi‐Cal 

funds

1,145,414$        

L Direct Support / Indirect (7300-7399)

-$                      

M Debt Services (7400 - 7499)
Various departments



Explanation of Differences 
Net Change in Current Year Budget October Board Report

09/16/23-10/15/23

Amount Explanation of Differences
-$                      

N Transfers In (8910-8979)

-$                      

O Transfers Out (7610-7629)

-$                      

P Contributions (8980-8999)

-$                      

Net Change in Current Year Budget (179,460)$         



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  ___  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Site Profile Worksheet and Update Summary   
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:     November 8, 2023              
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
__X__ Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 James Peters  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   James Peters  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
   James Peters  
 

  
 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:   
 
Facilities Site Profile Worksheet and Update summary for the first quarter of FY23-24 
Are being presented to the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Site Profile Worksheet – update summary November 2023 

FY23-24 Quarterly Update  
Facilities 
 The Career Training & Conference Center (CTC) RFQ process has been completed, and the design-

build entity has been approved—the contract is in effect with Hilbers Inc. and NMR Architects. 
o 30% of design drawings received and are being shared with the Board in the August Board 

meeting. 
o 30% GMP Board approved, design completion on schedule, currently at 50% 

Klamath 
 Phase 1 painting and reconfiguring workspaces/storage in Special Education offices is complete. 
 Phase 2 to commence in the Winter 
 Klamath HVAC design finalized. Going to Informal Bids in November of 2023. 
 HR is under reconfiguration to maximize available spaces for orientations and confidential meetings. 

HR reconfiguration and moves complete 
 Klamath and FRA are due for deferred rehabilitation of the landscaping. We will begin with the grass 

areas, with the goal of laying sod or hydro-seed (as applicable) by the end of October.  
o Klamath is getting new sod in Novemebr 2023 
o We are collaborating with Barrow’s Landscape for improved planter design at both Klamath 

and FRA  

FRA 
 AB841 Mechanical systems maintenance and assessment still underway 

o New CO2 sensors have been installed in Classrooms 
o New HVAC replacements are complete 
o We are waiting on further information and possibly funding from the Energy Commission for 

more retrofits 
 Boyd Hall asphalt slurry and stripe completed in July 
 Boyd Hall boiler reached lifespan, replacement complete 
 Classroom 1 life skills class expecting medically fragile students. A new floor and medical curtains 

have been added to improve the space 
 The staff breakroom and the former bookroom received new floors and paint. 
 We are currently developing a 5-year roof rehab/replacement plan with Garland Manufacturing. 

Cosmetology 
 The second round of students are in! 
 The Salon is open to the public by appointment only 
 A new cash register system is installed 
 We were unable to extend our lease at 939 Live Oak Blvd, and are currently working quickly to build 

a new Cosmetology Studio in Building 1100. 
o The owner, John Coscarat, has been exceptionally supportive, allowing us to extend our 

Lease and to make the necessary building modifications to accommodate the program 
o Our goal to complete moves and open school at 1100 is December 20, 2023 
o Currently approximately 20% are complete with the remodel 
o FMO&F is very thankful that we accomplished so many of our goals during the summer! 

Now, we get to practice our Salon building skills!  



Shady Creek 
 The HVAC project design was received, and the Esser III funds for the project were approved on 

August 1, 2023. 
 The HVAC retrofit project bid process is open,  

o A pre-bid site walk was conducted on October 26, we had a great turnout of four (04) General 
(Prime) Contractors and six (06) sub-contractors. 

o Bids are due at 2:00 p.m. November 13, 2023. 

Special Ed 
 Classroom 103 at Sutter Union High School is complete 

Districts 
 We assisted Brittan Elementary and Pleasant Grove Elementary in installing their new water bottle 

fillers. 
 Browns Elementary had a massive backlog of tree services that needed to be done, and the cost was 

prohibitive. We sent our highly skilled and caring crew and helped them overcome the hurdle!  

 

Fleet 
 We are preparing to rotate out five termed leases on our coupes. Applying the equity from the trade-in 

reduces the ongoing monthly cost of the new vehicle leases. 
o Vehicles are ordered – five (05) sedans, two (02) mini-vans 

 We have several older vans in our fleet that we are preparing to surplus this year. Some will be 
replaced with new leases, while others will reduce the fleet size. We will apply the equity gained from 
the trade-in of all the vans to the new leases to keep costs down. 

 Our two Special Ed ADA vans are aging out, and maintenance costs are increasing. Additionally, our 
life skills classes will require additional van support. The SELPA has received approval to use 
SELPA funds to replace the vehicles. 

o Vans expected to arrive in November 

 



Site Profile Worksheet - Projects in queue 
Fiscal Year 23-24 

October 30, 2023 Estimate Status 
Facilities   $1,314,918.00  

Harter Bldg Phase 2 design completion $438,679.00 Complete 
CTC Bldg Phase 3 construction (FY portion) $876,239.00 Design at 50% completion 

   
Klamath $170,000.00  

HVAC redesign and replacement $80,000.00 Bidding in Fall 23-24 
Annual painting +/-1400 sq. ft. $3,000.00 Complete 
Floor finish replacement +/- 1400 sq. ft. $12,000.00 Complete 
HR reconfigure $15,000.00 Complete 
Landscape grass rehabilitation $60,000.00 Contracted - begins 10/30/23 
      

1 Stop Gateway $9,000.00  
Marquee sign replacement $5,000.00 On hold 
Health Careers curtains $4,000.00 Fall 23-24 
Relocate Cosmetology to bldg 1100 $50,000.00 In process - 20% complete 
      

FRA $132,700.00  
HVAC assessment and replacement $60,000.00 Complete 
Annual painting +/-1800 sq. ft. $2,700.00 Complete 
Flooring replacement in +/- 2400 sq. ft $15,000.00 Complete 
Boyd Hall storage/kitchen roof replacement $35,000.00 In development 
Boyd Hall boiler replacement $20,000.00 Complete 
      

Adult Ed $0.00   
Install safe for cash security   Complete 
      

Cosmetology  $0.00   
Install cash register system $0.00 Complete 
      

Fleet $250,000.00   
Replace two (02) ADA vans and add a third $250,000.00 Vehicles to deliver in Nov 2023 

Rotate out five Sentras for new leases $0.00 
In process, ordered, 26 wk lead 

time 
Surplus of three old vans for two new mini-
van $0.00 

In process, ordered, 26 wk lead 
time 

Add electric golf cart for program $11,000.00 Complete 
      

Shady Creek $448,400.00  
Site road repair and slurry $35,000.00 Complete 

HVAC assessment and design $350,400.00 
Bid process underway, closes Nov 

13 
Raptor Ridge roof rehabilitation $60,000.00 With HVAC project 
Holland Hall floor replacement $3,000.00 Complete 
Total $2,325,018.00   

 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   11  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  First Reading of Revisions to Board Policies 
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:          November 8, 2023        
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
     Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
  Ron Sherrod   
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
  Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
  Ron Sherrod   
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
The following revised Board Policies are presented to the Board for a first reading: 
 

• AR 3451 – Petty Cash Funds 
• AR 3452 – Student Activity Funds 
• AR 3400 – Management of County Office Assets/Accounts 
• BP 3400 - Management of County Office Assets/Accounts 
• AR 3440 - Inventories 

 
 
 
 



     
Policies and Regulations Manual               AR 3400         
Sutter County Board of Education   Page 1 of 2 
  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Sutter County Board of Education 
Adopted:  
 

Administrative Regulation 
Series 3000 - Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 
MANAGEMENT OF COUNTY OFFICE ASSETS/ACCOUNTS 
 
Accounts 
 
The County Office’s accounting system shall fully comply with the definitions, 
instructions and procedures set forth in the California Department of Education School 
Accounting Manual.  (Education Code 41010) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that funds are encumbered in the County 
Office’s accounting records immediately after an expenditure is committed for 
subsequent payment. 
 
 
Fraud Prevention and Investigation 
 
Fraud, financial improprieties or irregularities include but are not limited to: 
 
1. Forgery or unauthorized alteration of any document or account belonging to the 

County Office 
 
2. Forgery or unauthorized alteration of a check, bank draft or any other financial 

document 
 
3. Misappropriation of funds, securities, supplies or other assets 
 
4. Impropriety in the handling of money or reporting of financial transactions 
 
5. Profiteering as a result of insider knowledge of County Office information or 

activities 
 
6. Disclosing confidential and/or proprietary information to outside parties 
 
7. Disclosing investment activities engaged in or contemplated by the County Office 
 
8. Accepting or seeking anything of material value from contractors, vendors or 

persons providing services or materials to the County Office 
 
9. Destroying, removing or inappropriately using of records, furniture, fixtures or 

equipment 
 
10. Failing to provide financial records to authorized state or local entities 



     
Policies and Regulations Manual               AR 3400         
Sutter County Board of Education   Page 2 of 2 
  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Sutter County Board of Education 
Adopted:  
 

 
11. Any other dishonest or fraudulent act 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall investigate reports of fraudulent activity in a 
manner that protects the confidentiality of the parties and the facts.  All employees 
involved in the investigation shall be advised to keep information about the investigation 
confidential.   
 
If an investigation substantiates the occurrence of a fraudulent activity, the 
Superintendent or designee shall issue a report to appropriate personnel and to the 
Sutter County Board of Education.  The final disposition of the matter and any decision 
to file a criminal complaint or refer the matter to the appropriate law enforcement and/or 
regulatory agency for independent investigation shall be made in consultation with legal 
counsel.  The result of the investigation shall not be disclosed to or discussed with 
anyone other than those individuals with a legitimate need to know.   
 
 
 
 
 



Policies and Regulations Manual  BP 3400 
Sutter County Board of Education  Page 1 of 2 

________________________________________________________________________ 
Sutter County Board of Education 
Adopted: 
 

Board Policy 
Series 3000 - Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 
MANAGEMENT OF COUNTY OFFICE ASSETS/ACCOUNTS 
 
The Sutter County Board of Education and the Superintendent recognize their 
fiduciary responsibility to effectively manage and safeguard the assets and 
resources of the County Office in order to help achieve the goals for student 
learning.  The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain an 
accurate, efficient financial management system that enhances the County 
Office’s ability to meet its fiscal obligations, produces reliable financial reports, 
and complies with laws, regulations, policies, and procedures.  He/she shall 
ensure that the accounting system provides ongoing internal controls and meets 
generally accepted accounting standards.  
 
Capital Assets 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop a system to accurately identify 
and value assets in order to help ensure financial accountability and to minimize 
the risk of loss or misuse.  Assets with a useful life of more than one year and an 
initial acquisition cost of $5,000 or more shall be considered capital assets. The 
Superintendent or designee shall determine the estimated useful life of each 
capital asset and shall calculate and report the estimated loss of value or 
depreciation during each accounting period for all capital assets. 
 
Lease Capitalization 
 
Leases that are not classified as short-term and whose aggregate payments 
made or received exceed $100,000 will be capitalized (“Capitalization 
Threshold”) in compliance with GASB 87, except as noted below: 
 

• Leases that transfer ownership and do not contain termination options 
• Short-term leases (12 months or less) 
• Leases of assets that are investments 
• Intangible assets (mineral rights, patents, software, copyrights) 
• Biological assets (timber, living plants, living animals) 
• Supply contracts 
• Items deemed immaterial after consultation with auditors 
• $1 Leases or similar, not an exchange/exchange-like transaction 

 
Internal Controls/Fraud Prevention  
 
The Sutter County Board of Education and Superintendent expects Board 
members, employees, consultants, vendors, contractors, and other parties 
maintaining a business relationship with the County Office to act with integrity 



Policies and Regulations Manual  BP 3400 
Sutter County Board of Education  Page 2 of 2 

________________________________________________________________________ 
Sutter County Board of Education 
Adopted: 
 

and due diligence in dealings involving County Office assets and fiscal 
resources. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop internal controls which aid in the 
prevention and detection of fraud, financial impropriety, or irregularity.  These 
internal controls may include, but are not limited to, segregating employee duties 
relating to authorization, custody of assets, and recording or reporting of 
transactions; providing detailed, written job descriptions explaining the 
segregation of functions; adopting an integrated financial system; conducting 
background checks on business office employees; and requiring continuous in-
service training for business office staff on the importance of fraud prevention. 
 
All employees shall be alert for any indication of fraud, financial impropriety, or 
irregularity within their area of responsibility. Any employee who suspects fraud, 
impropriety, or irregularity shall immediately report those suspicions to his/her 
immediate supervisor and/or the Superintendent or designee.  In addition, the 
Superintendent or designee shall establish a method for employees and outside 
persons to anonymously report any suspected instances of fraud, impropriety, or 
irregularity. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall have primary responsibility for any 
necessary investigations of suspected fraud, impropriety, or irregularity, in 
coordination with legal counsel, auditors, law enforcement agencies, or other 
governmental entities, as appropriate.   
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
 EDUCATION CODE 

14500-14508  Financial and compliance audits 
35035  Powers and duties of superintendent 
35250  Duty to keep certain records and reports 
41010-41023  Accounting regulations, budget controls and audits 
42600-42604  Control of expenditures 
42647 Drawing of warrants by district on county treasurer; form; reports,  

statements and other data 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
53995-53997  Obligation of contract 

 



Policies and Regulations Manual                                 AR 3440 
Sutter County Board of Education  Page 1 of 2 
 

 

   
Sutter County Board of Education 
Adopted:  
 

Administrative Regulation 
Series 3000 - Business and Non-instructional Operations 

 
Inventories 

 
In order to provide for the proper tracking and control of County Office property, the 
Superintendent or designee shall maintain an inventory of equipment in accordance 
with law for the following: 
 

1. All equipment items currently valued in excess of $500  (Education Code 35168) 
 

2. All equipment items purchased with state and/or federal categorical funds that 
have a useful life of more than one year with an acquisition cost of $500 or more 
per unit 

 
 In addition, the Superintendent or designee may maintain a list of specific items  
 which shall be inventoried for internal control purposes regardless of their initial 
 cost or current value. 
 
The inventory shall contain a record of the following information:  (Education Code 
35168; 5 CCR 3946) 
 

1. Name and description of the property 
 

2. Identification number 
 

3. Original cost of the item of equipment or a reasonable estimate if the original cost 
is unknown 

 
4. Date of acquisition 

 
5. Location of use 

 
6. The date and method of disposal 

 
In addition to the information specified in items #1-6 above, the following information 
shall be recorded for equipment acquired with state and/or federal categorical funds 
unless otherwise specified in law:  (5 CCR 3946; 2 CFR 200.313) 
 

1. Source of the property (funding source) 
 

2. Titleholder 
 

3. Percentage of federal participation in the cost of the property 
 



Policies and Regulations Manual                                 AR 3440 
Sutter County Board of Education  Page 2 of 2 
 

 

   
Sutter County Board of Education 
Adopted:  
 

4. Use and condition of property 
 

5. Sale price of the property upon disposition and method used to determine current 
fair market value 
 

At the time of purchase, the Superintendent or designee shall affix a label to the 
equipment containing the identification number and the County Office name.  
Equipment items purchased with categorical program funds shall also be labeled with 
the name of the project in accordance with 5 CCR 3946. 
 
Whenever an equipment item is moved to a new location or the equipment is used for a 
new purpose, the new location or purpose shall be recorded in the inventory. 
 
Physical Inventory 
 
At least once every two years, a physical inventory of equipment shall be conducted 
and the results reconciled with the property records. (2 CFR 200.313) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures for conducting the physical 
inventory which shall include, but not be limited to, designation of person(s) responsible 
for coordinating and conducting the inventory, preparation and distribution of count 
sheets, procedures for implementing the inventory, and procedures for conducting a 
recount to substantiate the validity of the inventory. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall investigate any differences between the 
quantities determined by the physical inspection and those in the accounting records. 



Policies and Regulations Manual  AR 3451 
Sutter County Board of Education   Page 1 of 1 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
Sutter County Board of Education 
Adopted:  
 

Administrative Regulation 
Series 3000 - Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 
Petty Cash Funds 
 
In order to facilitate minor purchases, the Superintendent or designee may 
establish petty cash at certain Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 
sites. The petty cash shall be used for unforeseen, small expenses, such as 
postage or individual purchases of supplies. 
 
The designee at each site shall be responsible for all expenditures from each 
fund and shall create a system for tracking fund expenditures.  Each expenditure 
shall be supported by appropriate documentation.  
 
Expenditures shall be reconciled and accounted for whenever the fund be 
replenished, at the end of the fiscal year, or at the request of the Superintendent 
or designee. 
 
The designee shall ensure that the petty cash fund is kept in a safe and secure 
location.  
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35160  Authority of governing boards 
35250  Duty to keep certain records 
41020  Requirement for annual audit 
42800-42810  Revolving funds 
 

 
 



Policies and Regulations Manual                                          AR 3452 
Sutter County Board of Education        Page 1 of 1 
 

   
Sutter County Board of Education 
Adopted:  
 

Administrative Regulation 
Series 3000 - Business and Non-instructional Operations 
 

 
Student Activity Funds 

 
The Sutter County Board of Education and the Superintendent recognizes that student 
organizations can provide students with an opportunity to conduct worthwhile 
cocurricular activities beyond those provided by the County Office and can also help 
students learn about effective financial practices. To that end, student organizations 
may raise and spend funds to support activities that promote the general welfare, 
morale, and educational experiences of the student body. 

 
Fund-Raising Events 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall review the proposed events and determine 
whether the events contribute to the educational experience and are not in conflict with 
or detract from the school's educational program.  When reviewing proposed events, the 
Superintendent or designee shall consider the effects of the activities on student health 
and safety, evaluate the risk of liability to the County Office, and ensure that the 
proposed activities are in compliance with law, Board Policy, Superintendent policy, and 
administrative regulation. 
 
Management of Funds 
 
Student body funds shall be managed in accordance with law and sound business 
procedures designed to encourage the largest possible educational return to students 
without sacrificing the security of funds.  
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop internal control procedures to safeguard 
the organization's assets, promote the success of fund-raising ventures, provide reliable 
financial information, and reduce the risk of fraud and abuse. These procedures shall 
detail the oversight of activities and funds including, but not limited to, the appropriate 
role and provision of training for staff and students, parameters for events on campus, 
appropriate and prohibited uses of funds, and accounting and record-keeping 
processes, including procedures for handling questionable expenditures. 
 
The principal or designee shall be responsible for the proper conduct of all student 
organization financial activities. The Superintendent or designee shall periodically 
review the organization's use of funds to ensure compliance with the County Office's 
internal control procedures. 
 
 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   12  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: COP Financing Results Presentation 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   November 8, 2023             
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
     Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
    X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Lori Raineri & Keith Weaver 
Government Financial Services JPA  
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
To provide a presentation summarizing the results of the COP financing. 
 



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 1

Financing Results for New Career 
Training & Conference Center

November 8, 2023 
Presented by Lori Raineri and Keith Weaver

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools

Presentation materials provided for distribution at meeting and not meant to stand alone without verbal commentary and discussion.



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 2

u Review of Financing Plan

u Challenges and Strategies Leading Up To Sale

u Sale Process and Results

u In Summary

u For Reference
▶Detailed costs of issuance
▶ Presentation dated August 31, 2023

Agenda



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 3

u Construction of the new Career Training & Conference Center will 
be paid from:
▶ Internal cash contributions 

▶COP Financing

Note: Capital outlay reserve (Fund 40) had estimated fund balance of $8.2 million including funds from property sales, per FY 2023-24 Budget, with the full $9.0 million 
now available.

Update of Financing Plan

Funding Source Contribution Funding Source Contribution

Cash Contribution: $9,000,000 Cash Contribution: $7,793,020
Financing Proceeds: $16,097,549 Financing Proceeds: $16,097,549

Total: $25,097,549 Total: $23,890,569

Preliminary Construction Funding Plan Actual Construction Funding Plan

Funding Source Cash Contribution Funding Source Cash Contribution

Property Sales: $2,000,000 Property Sales: $2,000,000
Capital Outlay Reserve: $7,000,000 Capital Outlay Reserve: $5,793,020

Total: $9,000,000 Total: $7,793,020

Actual Cash Contribution PlanPreliminary Cash Contribution Plan



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 4

u Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA):

▶Competitive Process to Select Underwriter/Bank

▶ Evaluated and Selected Credit Rating Agencies

▶Managed the Cost of Debt Issuance

▶Call Features Incorporated into New Issuances

▶Use of Independent Public Finance Consultant

Several GFOA Best Practices Utilized



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 5

✓ Review of Financing Plan

u Challenges and Strategies Leading Up To Sale

u Sale Process and Results

u In Summary

u For Reference
▶Detailed costs of issuance
▶ Presentation dated August 31, 2023

Agenda



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 6

uSeveral challenges faced us:
▶ 40-year financing is longer than typically seen in the market

● 30 years or less is more typical

▶ Rising market interest rates
uStrategies to address challenges:

▶ Conservative assumptions in financial plan
▶ Credit rating 

● an indication of credit quality and risk to the COP investor

▶ Bond insurance
● a type of insurance policy that provides for the repayment of the 

principal and interest payments to the investors in the event of default

✓ Credit rating and bond insurance provide assurance to investors 
and make the financing more attractive to potential bidders, and 
therefore may help reduce interest cost.

Challenges and Strategies



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 7

Strategy #1: Assumptions

u At the time of the Board meeting on August 31, interest rates 
remained elevated

u Market interest rates beyond our control

u Risk mitigation action: 
▶Conservative assumptions in financing plan included:

● “A-” credit rating
● Bond insurance not available



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 8

Strategy #1: Assumptions (continued)

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

Jan
-2019

Apr-2
019

Jul-
2019

Oct-
2019

Jan
-2020

Apr-2
020

Jul-
2020

Oct-
2020

Jan
-2021

Apr-2
021

Jul-
2021

Oct-
2021

Jan
-2022

Apr-2
022

Jul-
2022

Oct-
2022

Jan
-2023

Apr-2
023

Jul-
2023

Interest Rate

Date

The Benchmark Interest Rate Rose Between The Board Meeting and COP Sale Day

Bond Buyer 20-Bond Index

*Notes: the Bond Buyer 20-Bond Index consists of 20 general obligation bonds that mature in 20 years and is compiled every Thursday. The average rating of the 20 bonds is roughly equivalent to 
Moody's Investors Service's Aa2 rating and Standard & Poor's Rating Service AA rating. 

Board Meeting: Benchmark Interest Rate 
(August 24, 2023)

3.84%

Sale Day: Benchmark Interest Rate 
(September 28, 2023) 4.09%



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 9

Strategy #1: Assumptions (continued)

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

5.50%

6.00%

6.50%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40

Interest Rate

Bond Term to Maturity (Years)

Interest Rate Assumptions Were Set Based on a Market Index, Adjusted for the County Superintendent of 
School's Estimated Credit for the COPs and the Planned Timing of the COP Issuance

Notes: the market index for "AAA" credit is based on the Municipal Market Data (MMD) scale as of July 31, 2023. Credit adjustment based on multiple factors including estimated 
underlying S&P "A-" rating, collateral, and financing term. The 20-Bond Index is the average yield on the 20th year maturity for 20 general obligation bonds with an average rating 
equivalent to Moody's Investors Service's "Aa2" rating and Standard & Poor's Rating Service "AA". The Index is weekly as of each Thursday. Historical volatility based on 20-Bond Index 
over one year timeframe, beginning January 1, 1984 to July 31, 2023.

Credit Adjustment for 
SCSOS Project: 

Years 1 - 9: + 0.85%
Years 10+ : + 1.50%

Market Index for 
"AAA" Credit

As of July 31, 2023

Estimated COP Financing Interest Rates

Timing Adjustment for
3 Months: + 0.50%



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 10

Strategy #2: Credit Rating

u SCSOS COPs were evaluated for a credit rating by one of the main 
credit rating agencies: S&P Global Ratings

u On September 15, the new COPs received rating of “A+”
▶ Stable local economy
▶ Positive operating performance

● sustained structural balance
● very strong reserves

▶Good financial management policies and practices
● monthly reporting of budget-to-actuals and investment performance to the 

governing board
● formal 5% reserve policy

▶Manageable debt burden, with OPEB set-aside equal to 
unfunded liability



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 11

Strategy #2: Credit Rating (continued)

✓ The “A+” rating is an upgrade from the “A” rating received for 
SCSOS’ 2008 COPs



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 12

uBased on market research, qualifying for bond insurance appeared 
crucial to obtain the market attention among potential bidders

uThe main challenge to obtaining bond insurance is that, 
historically, bond insurers did not want to undertake construction 
risk when the project to be constructed is also the collateral

▶ Sufficiency of collateral value required two existing sites and 
the building to be constructed:
● Main Administration (insured value ~$5 million)
● Feather River Academy (insured value ~$7 million)

Strategy #3: Bond Insurance



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 13

uTwo major insurance companies in the industry:
▶ Assured Guaranty Municipal
● confirmed that AGM would not offer insurance due to 

construction risk
▶ Build America Mutual
● willing to reconsider their standard position on 

construction risk
● was already reviewing their thinking

Strategy #3: Bond Insurance (continued)



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 14

uBuild America Mutual’s Head of Public Finance, West Region 
personally oversaw the credit review process

uCredit positives:
▶ Financial strength of SCSOS
▶ SCSOS cash contribution to construction project and 

commitment to spend cash on-hand concurrently with 
financing proceeds

✓ Receipt of BAM insurance added an "AA Insured Credit Rating" to 
the financing, an enhancement to the "A+ Underlying Rating"

✓ SCSOS became the first in California to obtain BAM insurance 
with construction risk of underlying collateral

Strategy #3: Bond Insurance (continued)



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 15

✓ Review of Financing Plan

✓ Challenges and Strategies Leading Up To Sale

u Sale Process and Results

u In Summary

u For Reference
▶Detailed costs of issuance
▶ Presentation dated August 31, 2023

Agenda



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 16

Headlines Leading Up to Sale: Market Uncertainty

Week Prior Week Of

u Despite market uncertainty, underwriters continued to express 
interest in SCSOS COPs in days leading up to sale



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 17

u Internet sale notification and bidding 
▶ PARITY online bidding platform

● Used to notify potential bidders and to accept bids
● Any bank or underwriter may bid
● Bidding allowed within flexible parameters

▶AVIA printing company provides electronic prospectus 
posting

▶ Posting in The Bond Buyer and other industry news outlets

Sale Process



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 18

u Competitive bidding on Thursday, September 28, with bidding 
concluding at 8:35a.m., and attended virtually by the Assistant 
Superintendent, Business Services

✓ More competition è better results for SCSOS

Sale Process (continued)



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 19

4 Firms Bid From Across the U.S.

New York, New York
(2 firms)

Milwaukee,
Wisconsin

Boston,
Massachusetts

Note: location represents bidder’s location.



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 20

Bid Results

$0 $5,778 $53,733 

$686,431 

4.956% 4.958% 4.978%
5.230%

$0

$150,000

$300,000

$450,000

$600,000

$750,000

$900,000

$1,050,000

$1,200,000

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

5.50%

6.00%

6.50%

RBC Capital Markets Morgan Stanley Fidelity Capital Markets Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc.

Approx PV from
Winning Bid

True Interest
Cost (TIC%)

RBC Capital Markets Submitted the Lowest Cost Bid; the Difference Between
First and Last Place Bids Amounted to $686,431 

Difference from Winning Bid

True Interest Cost

Notes: data from bids received. Subsequent to the bidding, the winning bid was restructured, changing the True Interest Cost (TIC) to 4.951033%.



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 21

u Examples of other county office of education COPs 
competitively bid (past 20 years):
▶ Yuba COE 2003 COPs: 4 bids
▶ Yolo COE 2004 COPs: 2 bids
▶ SCSOS 2008 COPs for Shady Creek: 2 bids
▶ Madera CSOS 2011 COPs: 4 bids
▶ Yolo COE 2015 COPs: 3 bids

uMore bids were received for these COPs than the 2008 COPs

u 4 bids is the high end of the range of bids we have seen 
historically for county offices of education 

Participation Compared to Past COE COP Sales



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 22

Actual Rates Beat Conservative Assumptions

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

5.50%

6.00%

6.50%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40

Interest Rate

Bond Term to Maturity (Years)

Actual Financing Rates vs. Budgeted Financing Rates

Notes: the market index for "AAA" credit is based on the Municipal Market Data (MMD) scale. Credit adjustment based on multiple factors including estimated underlying S&P "A-" rating, 
collateral, and financing term. The 20-Bond Index is the average yield on the 20th year maturity for 20 general obligation bonds with an average rating equivalent to Moody's Investors 
Service's "Aa2" rating and Standard & Poor's Rating Service "AA". The Index is weekly as of each Thursday. Historical volatility based on 20-Bond Index over one year timeframe, beginning 
January 1, 1984 to July 31, 2023.

Market Index for "AAA" Credit
As of July 31, 2023

Estimated COP Financing Interest Rates

Market Index for "AAA" Credit
As of September 28, 2023

Actual 2023 COP Financing Rates



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 23

Actual Debt Service Payments

$0

$250,000

$500,000

$750,000

$1,000,000

$1,250,000

2023 2025 2027 2029 2031 2033 2035 2037 2039 2041 2043 2045 2047 2049 2051 2053 2055 2057 2059 2061 2063

Estimated 
COP Payments

Fiscal Year Beginning July 1

2023 COPs Financing is Repaid Over Time Matching the 40-Year Term for Federal Depreciation

Estimated Net Annual Debt Service

Actual Net Annual Debt Serv ice

Notes: Federal depreciation per Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards found in Title 2 Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200. Estimated financing based on conservatively estimated upfront costs and interest rates as of 7/31/23 plus timing adjustment of 0.50% based on scheduled financing 
sale date in approx. two months (October 2023) and 94.7% historical volatility in Bond Buyer 20-Bond index over three months during 1/1/84 to 7/31/23. Final year in FY 
2063-64 not shown for estimated net annual debt service due to application of cash funded reserve. Actual based on sale results from competitive bid process held 9/28/23.

Average Fiscal Year Payment Beginning FY 2026-27: $1,016,630 

SCSOS payments structured to be 
lower during construction:

FY 2024-25: approx. $590,000
FY 2025-26: approx. $577,000
FY 2026-27: approx. $1,023,000

Estimated Total Net Debt Service: $42,224,114
Actual Total Net Debt Service: $39,798,419
Savings: $2,425,695



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 24

Comparison to Budget

u Market conditions resulted in higher original issue discount than 
budgeted

u However, costs of issuance and underwriter’s discount were 
lower than budgeted

u Because the financing qualified for BAM insurance, we were also 
able to purchase a reserve policy from BAM to replace the cash-
funded reserve

u Overall, a smaller financing was needed to generate the funds for 
the project.

Budgeted Actual Difference
COP Issuance Amount $18,740,000 $18,040,000 ($700,000)

Original Issue Discount ($146,838) ($506,934) ($360,097)
Costs of Issuance ($201,000) ($191,408) $9,592

Underwriter's Discount ($234,250) ($124,699) $109,551

Cash Funded Reserve ($1,165,775) $0 $1,165,775

Reserve - Policy $0 ($25,756) ($25,756)

Capitalized Interest ($894,138) ($910,463) ($16,325)

Bond Insurance Policy $0 ($183,190) ($183,190)

Rounding ($450) $0 $450

Net Proceeds $16,097,549 $16,097,549 $0



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 25

Financial Success

✓ Financing reduced by $700,000

✓ Costs reduced by $700,000

✓ Debt service reduced by $2.4 million

u Smaller financing with less cost and lower debt service:

Note: comparison to estimate based on prior Board information presentation, ”Update on Financing Plan for Construction of a New Building for the Career 
Training & Conference Center”, presented August 31, 2023. Costs include all upfront costs and uses of funds paid from the financing amount that result in 
net proceeds, including original issue discount, costs of issuance, underwriter’s discount, reserve (cash funded or surety), capitalized interest, and bond 
insurance. Debt service reflects net debt service after application of reserve and/or capitalized interest.

Estimate Actual Change

$18,740,000 $18,040,000 ($700,000)

Estimate Actual Change

$2,642,451 $1,942,451 ($700,000)

Estimate Actual Change

$42,224,114 $39,798,419 ($2,425,695)



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 26

✓ Review of Financing Plan

✓ Challenges and Strategies Leading Up To Sale

✓ Sale Process and Results

u In Summary

u For Reference
▶Detailed costs of issuance
▶ Presentation dated August 31, 2023

Agenda



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 27

uPositive operating performance and good financial management 
policies and practices à “A+” rating from S&P
▶ An upgrade from 2008 COPs

u Financial strength of SCSOS and commitment to spend cash on-
hand concurrently with financing proceeds for construction of 
new building à BAM insurance 
▶ SCSOS became the first issuer in California to obtain BAM 

insurance with construction risk of collateral
uBoth the “A+” rating and bond insurance were instrumental in the 

ability to sell COPs competitively
▶ More competition à better results for SCSOS

✓ Less debt was issued with less cost and lower debt service than 
estimated to generate the funds for the construction project

In Summary



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 28

Any Questions?



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 29

✓ Review of Financing Plan

✓ Challenges and Strategies Leading Up To Sale

✓ Sale Process and Results

✓ In Summary

u For Reference
▶Detailed costs of issuance
▶ Presentation dated August 31, 2023

Agenda



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 30

Detailed Costs of Issuance  

 

SCSOS-23COP-COI.xlsx COI-current 10/20/23 SKW Page 1 of 1

Sutter County Board of Education
2023 Certificates of Participation

Final Costs of Issuance

Description Total Costs

• Parker & Covert LLP, Special Counsel
      Special Counsel Services and Expenses: $22,800.00

• Lozano Smith LLP, Disclosure Counsel
      Special Counsel Services and Expenses: $22,800.00

• Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority, Public Finance Consultant
      Planning Services and Expenses: $9,500.00
      Financing Services and Expenses: $75,000.00

• Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, Rating Agency
      Professional Services: $24,000.00

• Other Issuance Expenses (break out listed below)
    BNY Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Trustee
           Acceptance Fee: $1,000.00
           First Year's Annual Administration Fee: $1,500.00
           Legal Counsel Fee: $1,500.00
     Stewart Title Company: Title Insurance $15,347.00
     Public Property Financing Corporation of California: Non-Profit Corporation $4,500.00
     Parker & Covert LLP, Corporation Counsel $2,000.00
     California Municipal Statistics: Disclosure Data Provider $1,725.00
     AVIA Communications, Inc.: OS Printing and Distribution $1,943.79
     AMTEC: Arbitrage Yield Verification $250.00

     Contingency / Other $7,542.62

COSTS OF ISSUANCE $191,408.41



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 1

Update on Financing Plan for 
Construction of a New Building for the
Career Training & Conference Center

August 31, 2023 
Presented by Lori Raineri

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools

Presentation materials provided for distribution at meeting and not meant to stand alone without verbal commentary and discussion.



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 2

u Paying for Construction

u Financing Plan

u Financing Process

u Next Steps

u For Reference
▶Detailed costs of issuance
▶ Presentation dated August 10, 2022

Agenda



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 3

Career Training & Conference Center

u The center is expected to house many programs including:
▶ Sutter County 1 STOP
▶ Sutter County Adult Education offices
▶ Tri-County Regional Occupation Program offices
▶ Sutter County Education Services - Curriculum, Instruction & Accountability

u Occupancy planned to start by FY 2026-27.

▶ North Central Adult Education Consortium offices
▶ Program classrooms and conference rooms
▶ Community Conference Room



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 4

u The new building can be paid from:

▶Cash contribution 

▶ Financing the remaining cost

Note: total construction cost estimate as of July 28, 2023 and financing amount subject to change as costs are finalized. Capital outlay reserve (Fund 40) has 
estimated fund balance of $8.2 million including funds from property sales, per FY 2023-24 Budget, with the full $9.0 million now available.

Update on Paying for Construction

Funding Source Contribution

Cash Contribution: $9,000,000
Financing Proceeds: $16,097,549

Total: $25,097,549

Preliminary Construction Funding Plan

Funding Source Cash Contribution

Property Sales: $2,000,000
Capital Outlay Reserve: $7,000,000

Total: $9,000,000

Preliminary Cash Contribution Plan



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 5

✓ Paying for Construction

u Financing Plan

u Financing Process

u Next Steps

u For Reference

Agenda



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 6

Interest Rates Remain Elevated

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

Jan
-2019

Apr-2
019

Jul-
2019

Oct-
2019

Jan
-2020

Apr-2
020

Jul-
2020

Oct-
2020

Jan
-2021

Apr-2
021

Jul-
2021

Oct-
2021

Jan
-2022

Apr-2
022

Jul-
2022

Oct-
2022

Jan
-2023

Apr-2
023

Jul-
2023

Interest Rate

Date

The Benchmark Interest Rate Has Increased from the Low Levels of the Past Couple Years, Though It 
has Come Down from Recent Highs

Bond Buyer 20-Bond Index

*Notes: the Bond Buyer 20-Bond Index consists of 20 general obligation bonds that mature in 20 years and is compiled every Thursday. The average rating of the 20 bonds is roughly equivalent to 
Moody's Investors Service's Aa2 rating and Standard & Poor's Rating Service AA rating. 

Benchmark Interest Rate 
(August 24, 2023)

3.84%



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 7

Even Higher Interest Rates Assumed

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

5.50%

6.00%

6.50%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40

Interest Rate

Bond Term to Maturity (Years)

Interest Rate Assumptions Were Set Based on a Market Index, Adjusted for the County Superintendent of 
School's Estimated Credit for the COPs and the Planned Timing of the COP Issuance

Notes: the market index for "AAA" credit is based on the Municipal Market Data (MMD) scale as of July 31, 2023. Credit adjustment based on multiple factors including estimated 
underlying S&P "A-" rating, collateral, and financing term. The 20-Bond Index is the average yield on the 20th year maturity for 20 general obligation bonds with an average rating 
equivalent to Moody's Investors Service's "Aa2" rating and Standard & Poor's Rating Service "AA". The Index is weekly as of each Thursday. Historical volatility based on 20-Bond Index 
over one year timeframe, beginning January 1, 1984 to July 31, 2023.

Credit Adjustment for 
SCSOS Project: 

Years 1 - 9: + 0.85%
Years 10+ : + 1.50%

Market Index for 
"AAA" Credit

As of July 31, 2023

Estimated COP Financing Interest Rates

Timing Adjustment for
3 Months: + 0.50%



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 8

$0

$250,000

$500,000

$750,000

$1,000,000

$1,250,000

2023 2025 2027 2029 2031 2033 2035 2037 2039 2041 2043 2045 2047 2049 2051 2053 2055 2057 2059 2061 2063

Estimated 
COP Payments

Fiscal Year Beginning July 1

A COP Financing is Assumed to Be Repaid Over Time Matching the 40-Year Term for Federal Depreciation

Estimated Financing Payments

Notes: Federal depreciation per Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards found in Title 2 Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200. COP financing based on conservatively estimated upfront costs and interest rates as of 7/31/23 plus timing adjustment of 0.50% based on scheduled financing sale 
date in approx. two months (October 2023) and 94.7% historical volatility in Bond Buyer 20-Bond index over three months during 1/1/84 to 7/31/23.

40-Year Financing Term
(same term as Federal 

depreciation term)

Preliminarily Estimated Average Fiscal Year Payment Beginning FY 2026-27: $1,103,965 

SCSOS payments to gradually 
step up during construction:

FY 2024-25: approx. $600,000
FY 2025-26: approx. $800,000
FY 2026-27: approx. $1,100,000

Final payment will be made 
by debt service reserve

Estimated True Interest 
Cost (TIC): 5.49%

Estimated Financing Payments

Estimated Financing Proceeds
Issuance $18,740,000

Original Issue Discount ($146,838)
Cost of Issuance ($201,000)

Underwriter's Discount ($234,250)
Cash Funded Reserve ($1,165,775)

Capitalized Interest ($894,138)

Rounding ($450)

Net Proceeds $16,097,549



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 9

u This financing can be repaid by: 
▶ First, cancelling lease agreements for rental facilities that 

house programs that can be moved into the new building:

▶ Then, redirecting rent expenses toward financing payments.
● Estimated to cover approx. 40% of the payments.
● Benefit grows over time due to avoiding rent increases.

Note: lease amounts per Sutter County Superintendent of Schools.

Repaying the Financing

Department Current Lease

950 Tharp Road #1000 One-Stop $110,582
950 Tharp Road #1100 One-Stop $103,440

990 Klamath Lane Adult Ed/CTC/ROP $99,909

939 Live Oak Blvd. Career Training Center $127,308

Total: $441,239

Potential Facilities Lease Cancellations

Location



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 10

u The remaining portion of the financing (approx. $700,000) 
is preliminarily expected to be repaid by a combination of: 
▶ Rental rates charged for the cost of housing One Stop 

Federal programs in the new building.
▶ Increasing tuition/fees for CTC and One Stop programs.
▶ Expanding CTC programs.
▶ Budgetary savings from staffing attrition.

Repaying the Financing (Continued)

Note: the Federal programs receive reimbursement through the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards found in Title 2 Code of Federal Regulations Part 200.



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 11

✓ Paying for Construction

✓ Financing Plan

u Financing Process

u Next Steps

u For Reference

Agenda



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 12

Financing Legal Structure: COPs

Annual Lease Rent $

Principal & 
Interest $

Investment $

Non-Profit
Financing Corporation

Borrowing $

Lease Site

Lease Back

New Building Underwriter/Bank

Sutter County 
Board of Education Investors

Trustee Bank
Note: Trustee Bank selected based on competitive process.



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 13

u 3 sites will initially be subject to the lease agreement:
▶ Main Administration (insured value ~$5 million)

▶ Feather River Academy (insured value ~$7 million)
▶ New Building

u The 3 sites will serve as initial collateral for the loan.

▶ Once the new building is completed, one or two sites may be 
dropped from serving as collateral.

▶ In the event SCSOS defaults on the loan, investors have the 
option to take possession of the sites to sell or lease.

u As a practical matter, investors are counting on 
    SCSOS to live up to its obligation in good faith.

Sites Subject to Lease



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 14

u Competitive Process - auction

u Negotiated Process - sale to pre-selected underwriter or lender/investor

ü The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommends that 
“bond issuers sell their debt using the method of sale that is most likely 
to achieve the lowest cost of borrowing while taking into account both 
short-range and long-range implications for taxpayers and ratepayers.”

COP Sale Methods



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 15

uCurrent recommendation: competitive bid process.

uBased on review of Government Finance Officers Association 
(GFOA) published best practices.

uExamples of other county office of education COPs competitively 
bid (prior 20 years):
▶ Yuba COE 2003 COPs: 4 bids
▶ Yolo COE 2004 COPs: 2 bids
▶ SCSOS 2008 COPs for Shady Creek: 2 bids
▶ Madera CSOS 2011 COPs: 4 bids
▶ Yolo COE 2015 COPs: 3 bids

Recommended COP Sale Process



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 16

uBased on research of current market conditions, the success of a 
competitive bid process appears dependent on the COPs 
qualifying for bond insurance.

uBond insurance is a type of insurance policy that provides for the 
repayment of the principal and interest payments to the 
bondholders in the event of default.

uReview for qualification is underway by one of the major bond 
insurance companies, Build America Mutual (BAM).

Sale Dependent on Market Conditions



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 17

u SCSOS has notified the State Superintendent of                  
Public Instruction’s office regarding the financing.

▶ Per Education Code 17150.1(b)

▶ Similar to how school districts notify County Superintendent of 
Schools of financing under Education Code 17150.1(a)

▶Notification required to occur at least 30 days before Board 
considers approval of the financing

● Submitted August 14, 2023

u The State Superintendent of Public Instruction’s office may 
comment publicly to the Board regarding the capability of SCSOS 
to repay the financing.

    

State Superintendent Review



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 18

✓ Paying for Construction

✓ Financing Plan

✓ Financing Process

u Next Steps

u For Reference

Agenda



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 19

uSeptember 13, 2023: Board will be asked to consider approval of 
the financing and associated legal documents.

uSeptember 28, 2023: competitive bid process.

uOctober 19, 2023: expected closing and funds available for 
construction of the new building.

uNovember 8, 2023: information presentation to the Board on the 
financing as finalized.

Next Steps



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 20

✓ Paying for Construction

✓ Financing Plan

✓ Financing Process

✓ Next Steps

u For Reference

Agenda



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 21

u Detailed costs of issuance 
u Presentation dated August 10, 2022

For Reference



© 2023 Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority Sutter County Superintendent of Schools – Page 22

Detailed Costs of IssuanceSutter County Board of Education
2023 Certificates of Participation

Estimated Costs of Issuance

Description Total Costs

• Parker & Covert LLP, Special Counsel
      Special Counsel Services and Expenses: $22,800.00

• Lozano Smith LLP, Disclosure Counsel
      Special Counsel Services and Expenses: $22,800.00

• Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority, Public Finance Consultant
      Planning Services and Expenses: $9,500.00
      Financing Services and Expenses: $75,000.00

• Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, Rating Agency
      Professional Services: $28,000.00

• Other Issuance Expenses (break out listed below)
     Trustee
           Acceptance Fee: $1,000.00
           First Year's Annual Administration Fee: $1,500.00
           Legal Counsel Fee: $1,500.00
           Costs of Issuance / Good Faith Deposit Administration: $500.00
           Investment of Cap I and Reserve Fund $2,000.00
     Stewart Title Company: Title Insurance $19,000.00
     Public Property Financing Corporation of California: Non-Profit Corporation $4,500.00
          Parker & Covert LLP, Corporation Counsel $2,000.00
     California Municipal Statistics: Disclosure Data Provider $1,725.00
     AVIA Communications, Inc.: OS Printing and Distribution $1,900.00
     AMTEC: Arbitrage Yield Verification $300.00

     Contingency / Other $6,975.00

COSTS OF ISSUANCE $201,000.00
Note: costs based on fee quotes 
or estimates as of 8/22/2023.



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 1

Presented by Lori Raineri
August 10, 2022

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools

Financing Plan for Construction of the 
Harter Building to House SCSOS 

Departments and Programs

Presentation materials provided for distribution at the meeting.  Please see meeting record for verbal commentary and discussion.



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 2

Agenda

u Paying for Construction of the Harter Building

u Financing Plan

u Preview of Financing Process

u Next Steps



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 3

Potential Harter Building

Note: picture from Conceptual Programming Study, Harrington Design Associates, February 1, 2022.



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 4

Estimated Timeline

Aug-01-22 Feb-01-23 Aug-04-23 Feb-04-24 Aug-06-24 Feb-06-25 Aug-09-25

SCSOS Begins Financing Payments

SCSOS Begins Occupancy

Construction

Financing Issuance

Preconstruction Phase 1 & 2

RFQ Process for Construction Firm

Task Description

Date

Beginning 
Nov '25

June '23 - Oct '24

Aug '22 - Nov '22

Nov '22 - May '23

Beginning Nov '24

Jan '23 - Apr '23

Estimated Timeline for Harter Building



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 5

Paying for Construction

u The Harter Building can be paid from:
▶Cash contribution from recent 

property sales:
● Building 300
● Parking Lot 
● Sierra Building

▶Cash contribution from the Special 
Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay

▶General Fund Reserve
▶ Financing the remaining cost

Note capital outlay reserve (Fund 40) has estimated ending fund balance of $7.6 million for FY 2022-23 including funds from property sales, per FY 2022-23 Budget.

Funding Source Contribution

Cash Contribution: $8,000,000

Financing Proceeds: $9,500,000

Total: $17,500,000

Preliminary Construction Funding Plan

Funding Source Cash Contribution

Property Sales: $2,000,000

Capital Outlay Reserve: $5,600,000

General Fund Reserve: $400,000

Total: $8,000,000

Preliminary Cash Contribution Plan



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 6

Agenda

✓ Paying for Construction of the Harter Building

u Financing Plan

u Preview of Financing Process

u Next Steps



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 7

Financing Cost On the Rise

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

Jan-2020 Jul-2020 Jan-2021 Jul-2021 Jan-2022 Jul-2022

Interest Rate

Date

This Year the Benchmark Interest Rate Has Increased During 2022

Bond Buyer 20-Bond Index

3.36%

Benchmark Interest Rate 
(July 21, 2022)

*Notes: the Bond Buyer 20-Bond Index consists of 20 general obligation bonds that mature in 20 years and is compiled every Thursday. The average rating of the 20 bonds is roughly equivalent to 
Moody's Investors Service's Aa2 rating and Standard & Poor's Rating Service AA rating. 



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 8

Even Higher Interest Rates Assumed

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40

Interest Rate

Bond Term to Maturity

Interest Rate Assumptions Were Set Based on a Market Index, Adjusted for the County Superintendent of 
School's Estimated Credit for a Certificates of Participation (COP) Financing, and the Planned Timing of the 

COP Issuance Early in the 2023 Calendar Year

Notes: the market index for "AAA" credit is based on the Municipal Market Data (MMD) scale as of July 22, 2022. Credit adjustment based on multiple factors including estimated 
underlying S&P "A-" rating, collateral, and financing term. The 20-Bond Index is the average yield on the 20th year maturity for 20 general obligation bonds with an average rating 
equivalent to Moody's Investors Service's "Aa2" rating and Standard & Poor's Rating Service "AA".  The Index is weekly as of each Thursday.  Historical volatility based on 20-Bond Index 
over nine month timeframe, beginning January 1, 1984 to July 21, 2022.

Credit Adjustment for 
SCSOS Project:

+ 1.60%

Market Index for 
"AAA" Credit

As of July 22, 2022

Timing Adjustment for 9 Months:
+ 0.75%

Estimated COP Financing Interest Rates
Interest rates adjusted based 
on historical volatility at 90%.



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 9

Estimated Financing Payments

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

2023 2025 2027 2029 2031 2033 2035 2037 2039 2041 2043 2045 2047 2049 2051 2053 2055 2057 2059 2061 2063

Estimated 
COP Payments

Fiscal Year Beginning July 1

A COP Financing is Assumed to Be Repaid Over Time, Matching the 40-Term for Federal Depreciation

Estimated Financing Payments

Notes: Federal depreciation per Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards found in Title 2 Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200. COP financing based on conservatively estimated upfront costs and interest rates as of 7/22/22 plus timing adjustment of 0.75% based on scheduled financing sale 
date in approx. nine months (5/1/23) and 90% historical volatility in Bond Buyer 20-Bond index over nine months during 1/1/84 to 7/21/22. 

Preliminarily Estimated Average Fiscal Year Payment:

40-Year Financing Term
(same term as Federal 

depreciation term)

$690,431 

Estimated Financing Proceeds
Issuance $11,185,000

Cost of Issuance ($175,000)
Underwriter's Discount ($167,775)

Bond Insurance ($137,074)
Surety Bond ($20,780)

Capitalized Interest ($1,163,809)

Contingency ($20,562)

Net Proceeds $9,500,000

SCSOS payments to begin 
FY 2025-26 (following 

Harter Building occupancy) 



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 10

Repaying this Financing

u This financing can be repaid by: 
▶ First, cancelling lease agreements for rental facilities that 

house programs that can be moved into the Harter Building:

▶ Then, redirecting rent expenses toward financing payments.
● Estimated to cover 64% of the payments initially.
● Benefit grows over time due to avoiding rent increases.

Note: lease amounts per Sutter County Superintendent of Schools.

Department Current Lease

950 Tharp Road #1000 One-Stop $110,582
950 Tharp Road #1100 One-Stop $103,440

990 Klamath Lane Adult Ed/CTC/ROP $99,909

939 Live Oak Blvd. Career Training Center $127,308

Total: $441,239

Potential Facilities Lease Cancellations

Location



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 11

Repaying a Financing (Continued)

u The remaining portion of the financing (approx. $250,000) is 
preliminarily expected to be repaid by a combination of: 
▶ Increasing rental rates charged for the cost of housing 

One Stop Federal programs in the Harter Building:
●WorkAbility
●Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)

▶Adding building depreciation to M&O allocations 
charged to departments.

▶ Increasing tuition/fees for CTC programs.
▶ Expanding CTC programs:

● Cosmetology
●Dental Assistant and/or Vocational Nursing

Note: the Federal programs receive reimbursement through the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards found in Title 2 Code of Federal Regulations Part 200.



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 12

Agenda

✓ Paying for Construction of the Harter Building

✓ Financing Plan

u Preview of Financing Process

u Next Steps



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 13

Financing Legal Structure: COPs

Annual Lease Rent $

Principal & 
Interest $

Investment $

Non-Profit
Financing Corporation

Borrowing $

Lease Site

Lease Back

Harter Building Underwriter/Bank

Sutter County 
Board of Education Investors

Trustee Bank



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 14

Sites Subject to Lease

u 3 sites will initially be subject to the lease agreement:

▶ Main Administration (insured value ~$4 million)

▶ Feather River Academy (insured value ~$6 million)

▶ New Building

u The 3 sites will serve as initial collateral for the loan.

▶ Once the new building is completed, one or two sites may be 
dropped from serving as collateral.

▶ In the event SCSOS defaults on the loan, investors have the 
option to take possession of the sites to sell or lease.

u As a practical matter, investors are counting on 

SCSOS to live up to its obligation in good faith.



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 15

COP Sale Methods
uCompetitive Process - auction

uNegotiated Process - sale to pre-selected underwriter
or lender/investor

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA)
recommends that “bond issuers sell their debt using the method
of sale that is most likely to achieve the lowest cost of borrowing
while taking into account both short-range and long-range
implications for taxpayers and ratepayers.”



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 16

Recommended COP Sale Process
uCurrent recommendation: competitive bid process.

uBased on review of Government Finance Officers Association
(GFOA) published best practices.

uBased on our history with competitive bids (prior 20 years):

▶ Sacramento COE 2002 COPs: 5 bids

▶ Yuba COE 2003 COPs: 4 bids

▶ Yolo COE 2004 COPs: 2 bids

▶ SCSOS 2008 COPs for Shady Creek: 2 bids

▶ Madera CSOS 2011 COPs: 4 bids

▶ Yolo COE 2015 COPs: 3 bids

uRecommendation may be updated based on market 
conditions at the time of the COP sale.



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 17

COP Legal Documents

u A Board Resolution and legal documents associated with the 
financing are expected to be drafted and provided to the Board 
for consideration of approval early in the 2023 calendar year.

u Additional information on the legal documents and an update 
on market conditions are also planned for the Board’s review 
early in the 2023 calendar year.



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 18

State Superintendent Review

u SCSOS must notify the State Superintendent of 
Public Instruction’s office regarding the financing.

▶ Per Education Code 17150.1(b)

▶Notification required to occur at least 30 days 
before Board considers approval

▶ Similar to how school districts notify County Superintendent 
of Schools of financing under Education Code 17150.1(a)

u The Superintendent’s office may comment publicly to the Board 
regarding the capability of SCSOS to repay the financing.

Note: we assist in preparation of a debt notification report on behalf of SCSOS for the State Superintendent of Public Instruction’s office, 
similar to debt review reports we prepare when reviewing the proposed debt of school districts submitted for review to SCSOS.



© 2022 Government Financial Strategies Sutter County Superintendent of Schools - Page 19

Next Steps

uTonight: information on preliminary financing plan.

uJanuary 2023: planned information presentation update to the 
Board of Education. 

uFebruary 2023: Board asked to consider of approval of the 
financing and associated legal documents.

uApril 2023: financing process completed and funds available 
for construction of the Harter Building.



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   13  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Investment Statements 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   November 8, 2023           
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
 X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
  Ron Sherrod   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
The Investment Statement as of August 31, 2023 from the County Treasurer will be  
presented.  
  
 
 
 
 





















          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   14  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Donations  
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    November 8, 2023                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Maggie Navarro  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
  Ron Sherrod   
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 

Donor    Value     Purpose 
   Mari Reeve    $40.00     Shady Creek 
 
 

23-24 Year Current Period To Date 
Total Donations-Cash     $0.00  $40.00   $40.00 

 Total Donations-Value $0.00  $0.00   $0.00 
Total Donations  $0.00  $40.00   $40.00 
 

 





          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   15  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Lease for Storage Space with Arch Investments, 

LLC  
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   November 8, 2023             
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
   X  Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
   Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
Approval of the lease with Arch Investments for additional storage space located at: 
 

990 Klamath Lane, Building D, Suite 20-21 
Yuba City, CA 95993 



















          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   16  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Lease Extension with Coscarat Living Trust  
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   November 8, 2023             
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
   X  Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
   Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
Approval of Lease Extension with Coscarat Living Trust that currently accommodates training 
and meeting space located at: 
 

950 Tharp Road, #1100 
Yuba City, CA 95993 
 

The extension increases the duration through December 31, 2025 which converts to a month-
to-month lease thereafter. 
 







          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   17  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Lease Extension with Myriad Capital LLC  
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   November 8, 2023             
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
   X  Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
   Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
Approval of Lease Extension with Myriad Capital LLC that currently accommodates training 
and office space for Sutter County One Stop located at: 
 

950 Tharp Road, #1000 
Yuba City, CA 95993 
 

The extension increases the duration through December 31, 2025 which converts to a month-
to-month lease thereafter. 
 




	1.0 November Board Agenda 2023
	5.0 Board Minutes October 2023
	7.0 SSO Presentation
	8.0 Williams Quarterly Reports Board Agenda Item 10-30-23
	Williams Quarterly Reports Board Agenda Item.docx (1).pdf
	1090_001.pdf

	9.0 Williams Annual Report Board Agenda Item
	9.1 Annual Report ENJUHS
	9.2 Annual Report YCUSD
	10.0 Board Agenda Item - Oct Business Serv
	Agenda Item No.  ___
	BOARD AGENDA ITEM:
	BOARD MEETING DATE:
	BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:

	10.1  OCT Board Report 09-16-23 to 10-15-23
	10.2AGENDA ITEM REQUEST - November 2023 SWP
	10.3  Site Profile Worksheet – update summary October 2023
	11.0 Revised Board Policies
	11.1 3400 AR Management of County Office Assets & Accounts
	11.2 3400 BP Management of County Office Assets & Accounts
	11.3 3440 AR Inventories
	11.4 3451 AR Petty Cash Funds
	11.5 3452 AR Student Activity Funds
	12.0 Agenda item - COP Final Results 11.8.2023
	12.1SCSOS Board Results Presentation FINAL-2023-11-8
	13.0 Investment Report
	13.1 Treasurer Investment Report
	14.0 Donations
	14.1 Mari Reeves
	15.0 Agenda item - Storage Lease 990 Klamath Building D-Suite 20-21
	15.1 a
	15.2 a
	16.0 Agenda item - 1100 Bldg Lease Extension 11-8-2023
	16.1 a
	17.0 Agenda item - 1000 Bldg One-Stop Lease Extension 11-8-2023
	17.2

	Agenda Item No: 10
	BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Business Services Report
	BOARD MEETING DATE: November 08, 2023
	PREPARED BY: Nicolass Hoogeveen
	SUBMITTED BY: Nicolass Hoogeveen
	PRESENTING TO BOARD: Nicolass Hoogeveen
	BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: The monthly financial report for October will be reviewed
	Action: 
	0: 
	0: Off
	1: Yes

	1: 
	0: Off
	1: Off


	Check Box3: Off


